
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

1 November 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Audit & Governance Committee on 
Monday, 11th November, 2019 at 6.30 pm 

in the Committee Room, Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Jonathan Noble 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Tom Ashton 
 Councillors Richard Austin BEM, George Cornah, Anton Dani, 

Anne Dorrian, Colin Woodcock, Stephen Woodliffe and 
Mr Alan Pickering 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART I - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 To sign and confirm the minutes of the last meeting held on 16th September 2019. 
 

B   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

C   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

Public Document Pack



 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on 6th November 2019.  
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   FUND MANAGER PRESENTATION  
 

 (A presentation by Schroders)  
 

2   QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT (Pages 5 - 20) 
 

 (A report by Suzanne Rolfe, Transformation & Governance Manager)  
 

3   MID-YEAR TREASURY REPORT 2019/20 (Pages 21 - 38) 
 

 (A report by Paul Julian, Chief Finance Officer)  
 

4   INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2019/20 (Pages 39 - 52) 
 

 (A report by John Scott, Internal Audit Manager)  
 

5   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 53 - 54) 
 

 (For Members to consider the Committee’s work programme.) 
 

 
 

 
Notes: 
 

The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Janette Collier, 
Senior Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, 01205 314227    email: 
janette.collier@boston.gov.uk  
 

Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify 01205 314227    
email: janette.collier@boston.gov.uk as soon as possible. 
 

Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 

 

Emergency Procedures 
 

In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 
via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 

located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

16 September 2019 

Present: Councillor Jonathan Noble (Chairman), Councillor Tom Ashton (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Richard Austin BEM, George Cornah, Anton Dani, Anne Dorrian, 
Stephen Woodliffe and Mr Alan Pickering 
 
Officers –  
Chief Finance Officer and S151 Officer, Transformation & Governance Manager, 
Principal Auditor (City of Lincoln Council), Manager – Public Sector, Mazars and Senior 
Democratic Services Officer 
 
19   MINUTES 

 
The minutes of the Committee’s last meeting, held on 22nd July 2019, were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.  Hard copy of the information requested at 
the last meeting, relating to Internal Audit recommendations where the deadlines had 
been extended, (Minute 17 refers), had been circulated.   
 

Action: JC  
Obtain information from the relevant authority for Councillor Dani regarding the number 
of prosecutions of licensed premises selling illegal cigarettes and alcohol.  

 
20   ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER- YEAR ENDING 31 MARCH 2019 

 
Jon Machej, Engagement Manager, Mazars, presented the Annual Audit Letter, which 
summarised the key findings from the audit work undertaken by Mazars for the year 
ending 31st March 2019. 
 
The letter was addressed to the Council, but was designed to be read by the public and 
other external stakeholders.   
 
In response to questions, Mr Machej explained that WGA stood for Whole of 
Government Accounts and that these would be consolidated into the UK accounts.  
 
A Member referred to the Council’s investment in property funds and expressed the view 
that Committee Members would require further training in order to properly question the 
fund managers when they came to give presentations to the Committee.  
 
For clarification of the details regarding the investment, it was explained that the 
assumption was that the Council would benefit from an average net return, after 
borrowing costs, equating to £1,720,000 per year over the proposed 50-year term. 
These figures were based on information provided by officers in accordance with the 
Council’s Capital Strategy agreed in April 2018.  
 
It was confirmed that the Council’s pension liability had increased by £0.8m to 
approximately £38m. 
 
A Member suggested that, as the document was aimed at the public, it would be useful 
for it to contain a glossary of terms.   
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item A



Audit & Governance Committee 
16 September 2019 
 

Action: JM  
Incorporate a glossary of terms in the Annual Audit Letter in 2020. 
 
Action: PJ 
E-mail the link to the Capital Strategy of April 2018 to Councillor Dani.  

 
21   QUARTER 1 RISK REPORT 

 
The Transformation & Governance Manager presented a report containing risk 
management guidance and an update on risks in Quarter 1 (April to June 2019).  The 
Council’s risk management strategy was attached at Appendix A. 
 
Strategic risks were monitored each quarter, i.e. those risks that could impact most on 
the achievement of the Council’s corporate priorities as set out in the current Corporate 
Plan – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service.  There were no new strategic risks to 
report in Quarter 1.  The two highest risks for Quarter 1 remained housing and budget.   
 
The report summarised the strategic risks with additional details contained in Appendix 
B and full details at Appendix C for training purposes.   
 
The strategic risks for 2019/20 and the risk management framework would be reviewed 
alongside the development of the next Corporate Plan. 
 
The operational risks for 2019/20 had been reviewed by service managers as part of 
service planning for 2019/20 and a summary was set out in the report. 
 
Members discussed issues relating to the risk of fluvial as well as tidal flooding and the 
uncertainty of the effects of Brexit.  
 
In response to questions, it was explained that Alfresco was the Council’s document 
management system, enabling all documents to be held in one place.  It was anticipated 
that Climate Change would be considered in terms of risk as part of the review of the 
framework and the development of the next Corporate Plan.  The housing delivery 
actions given in the details of the housing risk in the strategic risks in Appendix B were 
contained within the existing Housing Strategy.   
 
A query was raised with respect to the table that set out the scoring of the likelihood and 
impact of risks.  The Chief Finance Officer explained that the aim of this guide was to 
enable risks to be prioritised and managed accordingly.  The bar to separate the impact 
of risks into ‘negligible’ and ‘minor’ impact had to be set at some point and allow the 
risks to be evenly spread throughout the scoring.  The figures had to be set in context 
against the value of the Council’s assets and expenditure, though the Council would not 
want to lose any sum.    
 
The risk management strategy document and the Transformation & Governance 
Manager’s presentation were commended.   
 

Action: SR  
1. Advise Members of the reasons for the Crematorium being rated as high risk.  
2. Amend the typographical error on page 5 of the Risk Management Framework 

Page 2



Audit & Governance Committee 
16 September 2019 

 

 
22   INTERNAL AUDIT- PROGRESS REPORT 2019/20 

 
The Principal Auditor presented the Internal Audit Progress Report. 
 
There were five audits in progress:  

 ICT Assurance map 

 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 Debtors Key Controls 

 Creditors Key Controls 

 Scrutiny 
 
The Principal Auditor advised Members that it was anticipated the Health and Safety 
Audit would be reported to the Committee’s next meeting. 
 
Management were making good progress with implementing the recommendations from 
the Homelessness audit and an information sheet with further details was circulated to 
the meeting. 
 
Due to management scheduling, more audits would be completed during the second 
half of year than during the first.  All audits planned for Quarter 2 were on track. 
 
During debate, a Member referred to the value of attending meetings of the Audit 
Committee Forum and urged Members to attend the meeting arranged for 1st October 
2019. 
 
Members discussed the issue of cash-handling with respect to market income and it was 
suggested that the system should be converted to a non-cash system.   
 
The Chief Finance Officer confirmed that there had been liaison with the Head of 
Service on this matter and efforts had been made to do so.  However, it would be 
difficult to change the system as the service was fundamentally cash-based and traders 
were more comfortable with it.  Also, some traders were casual and would not wish to 
pay in advance when they were not sure they would operate on a particular day. 
 
A Member commented that continuing with the cash system would be preferable to 
deterring traders.   
 

Action: PB  
Amend the omission in the Limited Assurance Definition of Appendix 2. 

 
23   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
Members recognised the importance of their role in questioning the fund managers, as 
the property funds were the Council’s largest investment.  Some felt further training 
would be crucial; however, it was suggested that the fund managers could address the 
Committee in turn at future meetings and Members would learn from each session.  It 
was suggested the property fund managers could attend quarterly.   
 

Page 3



Audit & Governance Committee 
16 September 2019 
 

The Chief Finance Officer advised Members that the Capital Strategy, agreed in April 
2018, had anticipated inviting property fund managers to address the Committee, but 
this had been delayed due to the May Elections and Link Asset Services had presented 
to Members of the Committee prior to this meeting.  The property funds were a long-
term investment and the role of the Committee was to monitor the performance of the 
property funds over the medium to long-term; therefore, Members would get to know the 
fund managers over time.  Members could receive presentations from, say, two fund 
managers and then identify areas for further training.  In the meantime, Members were 
reminded that they could contact the Chief Finance Officer if there were any issues they 
were unclear about.   
  

Action: JC  
Add a presentation by a property fund manager to the agenda for the meetings in 
November and January, subject to their availability. 

 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting ended at 7.35 pm 
 

Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 NOVEMBER 2019 

  QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 

 

Update on risks in Quarter 2 and annual review of strategic risks 

 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

That Committee comment on the Quarter 2 risk information if required and review the 
strategic risks. 

 

 
 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

The Audit & Governance Committee is responsible for monitoring the effective 
development and operation of risk management in the Council according to its terms of 
reference 

 

 
 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 

 

Alternative reporting arrangements 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 

 

REPORT 

 
1. Update on risks in Quarter 2 

1.1 Each quarter we monitor our strategic risks – those risks which could impact most 
on the achievement of our corporate priorities as set out in the current Corporate 
Plan – Prosperity; People; Place; Public Service. 

 
1.2 There are no new strategic risks to report in Quarter 2. 
 
1.3 Summary of strategic risks. 

 

Corporate 
Priority 

Risk name Risk owner Risk score Risk rating 
Management 

assurance 
(RAG) 

1: Prosperity 

Flood risk 
Michelle 
Sacks 

8 Medium Amber 

Growth and 
local economy 

Michelle 
Sacks 

9 Medium Green 

2: People 

Housing Andy Fisher 12 High Red 

Welfare Paul Julian 4 Medium Green 

Health Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

3: Place Town Centre Phil Perry 6 Medium Green 

4: Public 
Service 

Population 
change 

Andy Fisher 9 Medium Green 

Budget Paul Julian 12 High Amber 

Capacity 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

Transformation 
Programme 

Paul Julian 9 Medium Amber 

Brexit Paul Julian 9 Medium Green 

Overall 

Civil 
contingency 
risks 

Andy Fisher 8 Medium Green 

Compliance 
Michelle 
Sacks 

6 Medium Green 

Reputation 
Katharine 
Nundy 

6 Medium Green 

 
1.4 The two highest risks for Q2 remain housing and budget. 
 
2. Review of strategic risks 

2.1 We would ordinarily review the strategic risks annually in Q1. This was deferred to 
coincide with the development of the new Corporate Plan as the corporate priorities 
are the foundation for the identification of strategic risks. In light of the decision to 
review the Corporate Plan timetable following the recent peer review, it is 
appropriate to carry out an interim review of the strategic risks in Q2. 

 
2.2 CMT have reviewed the risk wording, scores, actions and assurance in Appendix A. 

Amendments are highlighted in bold in Appendix A with a summary below. 

 Welfare risk: actions updated 

 Town Centre risk: wording and actions updated 

Page 6



 

 

 Budget risk: wording and actions updated 

 Transformation risk: actions updated 

 Brexit risk: lead officer updated 

 No changes to risk scores or assurance 
 
2.3 Committee are invited to comment on the current risks in Appendix A and identify 

any new risks. 
 
2.4 There will be opportunity to consider emerging issues (for example, climate change 

after the working group’s report has been debated by Council) in future quarters. 
 
CONCLUSION 
Strategic and operational risks continue to be managed in accordance with the Risk 
Management Framework. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
There are no financial implications specific to this report. 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 Local Government Act 1999 

 Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: Framework 2016 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
None 

 
CONSULTATION 

Consultation has been undertaken with Corporate Management Team (CMT). 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
 

Risk Q2 2019/20 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

1
 

Flood risk 

The risk of 
flooding may 
adversely 
impact on the 
Council's 
ability to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Strategic Flood 
Risk 
Assessment; 
Lincolnshire 
Flood Risk 
Strategy; 
working closely 
with the 
Environment 
Agency; Local 
Plan; plans for 
the Boston 
Barrier (which 
will reduce risk 
of tidal flooding 
from 2% to 
0.3%); 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
manage flood 
risk and its 
impact; the 
risk score will 
only reduce 
when the 
Boston Barrier 
is in place 

N/A N/A Amber 

C
P

1
 

Growth and 
local economy 

Growth is vital 
to the future 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
prosperity 

MS 

Proactive 
approach to 
growth; 
economic 
development 
plan 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

Implementation 
of the Economic 
Development 
Plan 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
lack of 
growth to 
possible due 
to ED Plan 

Green 

P
age 9



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Housing 

Lack of housing 
delivery, across 
tenures that 
means that the 
range of 
housing needs 
that exist 
within the 
Borough 
cannot be met. 
 
A lack of 
delivery will 
have 
overarching 
negative 
impacts that 
affect the 
economy, 
business 
confidence and 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people and 
meet the wider 
housing needs 
of the 
community;  

AF 

Local Plan. 
Delivery of 
Housing 
Strategy Actions. 
Developing 
Transformation 
Programme to 
focus on wider 
housing 
enabling and 
housing 
delivery. 
 

4 
Almost 
certain 

3 
Major 
impact 

12 
High 
risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
drive the 
delivery of new 
Housing  

Monitoring of 
total housing 
delivery.   
 
Monitoring of 
affordable 
housing 
delivery. 

N/A Red 

P
age 10



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

2
 

Welfare 

Risk that 
‘universal 
support – 
delivered 
locally’ will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
vulnerable 
people 

PJ 

'Universal 
support - 
delivered locally' 
project work 
underway with 
partners to 
ensure support 
and training is in 
place for staff 
and local people 

2 
Possible 

2 
Minor 
impact 

4 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work on the 
'universal 
support - 
delivered 
locally' project 
with partners 

Monitor impact 
of universal 
credit; this will 
need ongoing 
attention due 
to the 
protracted 
nature of 
rollout and 
potential length 
of time before 
impacts appear 

N/A Green 

C
P

2
 

Health 

Risk that 
health issues 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority to 
support and 
protect 
people; long 
term health 
issues, 
deprivation, 
local 
perceptions, 
apathy, 
unsustainable 
health services 

PP 
Partnership 
working with 
health 

3 
Probable 

2 
Minor 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with 
partners to 
deliver the 
Sustainable 
Health 
Strategy 

Partnership 
work on the 
Sustainable 
Health Strategy 

N/A Green 

P
age 11



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

3
 

Town centre 

The future 
sustainability 
of the town 
centre in terms 
of retail, 
evening 
economy, 
housing, 
heritage, 
culture, 
leisure, events 
and car parking 
will have an 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
prosperity and 
place priorities 

PP 

Corporate Plan 
priorities; Local 
Plan & 
Conservation 
Area 
Management 
Plan; Heritage 
Strategy; 
Economic 
Development 
Plan 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 
Treat 

PE21 project 
and Heritage 
Action Zone, 
LEP Pipeline & 
Stronger Towns 
bids;  Lidl, 
Quadrant & 
other emerging 
development 
opportunities 
(gasification 
power plant 
etc.); 
Partnership 
Schemes in 
Conservation 
Areas & 
Townscape 
Heritage 
projects and 
the High Street 
Conservation 
Area 
Enforcement 
project; 
Mayflower 
400/Visit 
England 
Discover 
England Fund 
promotional 
work; LCC 
Transport 
Strategy & 

Aim to 
reduce the 
likelihood of 
the town 
centre 
deteriorating 
and to take 
all available 
opportunities 
to reshape a 
vibrant and 
sustainable 
town centre 

Green 

P
age 12



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

development of 
green initiatives 
(electric car 
charging 
points); South 
East Lincs Local 
Plan adoption 
& developing 
Town Centre 
Policy; Boston 
Stakeholder’s 
Forum/Town 
Team initiative 
& Public 
Relations 
project; 
Development of 
Boston College 
facilities e.g. 
Engineering 
Centre. Public 
Realm 
development & 
Partnership 
Working – 
Boston in 
Bloom, 
Christmas in 
Boston (lights), 
Transported 
Arts & Town 
Centre events 
programme; 
Visit Boston 

P
age 13



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

and Think 
Boston  
websites 

C
P

4
 

Population 
change 

There is a risk 
that 
population 
change will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priorities of 
people & 
prosperity 

AF 

Inclusive Boston 
projects; 
Controlling 
Migration Fund 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 
Tolerate 

 Project 
monitoring 

N/A Green 

C
P

4
 

Budget 

There is a risk 
around the 
long term 
balancing of 
the budget 
with economic 
and funding 
uncertainty 
impacting on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

PJ 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring; 
refresh of 
transformation 
programme; 
maintenance of 
the rateable 
value list; 
property fund 

3 
Probable 

4 
Critical 
impact 

12 
High 
risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have a robust 
budget setting 
and MTFP 
process in 
place; continue 
to drive the 
delivery of the 
refreshed 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of 
MTFP; quarterly 
reporting; 
implementation 
of the 
transformation 
programme; 
lobby 
government for 
funds; assess 
impacts of next 
spending 
review when 
available 

N/A Amber 

P
age 14



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Capacity 

There is a risk 
that capacity 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
achieve its 
corporate 
priority of 
public service 

KN 

Recruitment and 
retention 
project 
completed; 
succession 
planning; HR 
policies and 
procedures; 
good 
management 
practice; 
member training 
and 
development; 
there is capacity 
in priority areas 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
train and 
develop staff 
and members 
and maximise 
resources by 
prioritising and 
shared services 

Workforce 
planning; 
succession 
planning 

N/A Green 

C
P

4
 

Transformation 
Programme 

There is a risk 
that the next 
phase of the 
transformation 
programme 
will impact on 
the ability of 
the Council to 
deliver public 
service 

PJ 

Transformation 
Programme; 
project 
management 
methodology; 
governance in 
place via 
Transformation 
Board and 
quarterly 
reporting 

3 Probable 
3 

Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
drive the 
delivery of the 
transformation 
programme 

Delivery of the 
transformation 
programme  

N/A Amber 

P
age 15



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

C
P

4
 

Brexit 

The outcome 
of the 
referendum 
has resulted in 
economic 
uncertainty 
and there may 
be other 
changes 
around 
migration, the 
local 
workforce, and 
the legal 
framework in 
which we 
operate that 
are also 
uncertain at 
this time 

MS 

Medium Term 
Financial 
Strategy; 
budgetary 
process; sound 
level of reserves; 
continued close 
monitoring 

3 
Probable 

3 
Major 
impact 

9 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
have robust 
financial plans 
and monitoring 
in place 
pending more 
clarity 

Quarterly 
financial 
reporting 

N/A Green 

O
ve

ra
ll Civil 

contingency 
risks 

There are 
community 
risks which will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

AF 

Community Risk 
Register 
monitored by 
the Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum (LRF) 

2 
Possible 

4 
Critical 
impact 

8 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
work with the 
LRF 

Working in 
partnership 
with the 
Lincolnshire 
Resilience 
Forum 

N/A Green 

P
age 16



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Compliance 

There is a risk 
that non-
compliance 
with legal 
requirements / 
governance / 
internal 
controls will 
impact on the 
ability of the 
Council to 
operate 
effectively 

MS 

Internal 
controls, policies 
and procedures; 
annual 
governance 
statement; 
internal audit; 
safeguarding 
policy and 
procedures; 
ongoing work to 
improve 
contract 
management; 
Member 
training 
programme and 
corporate 
training 
programme in 
place; revised 
scheme of 
delegation; 
effective 
complaints 
management 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
ensure 
compliance 
with legal 
requirements, 
governance 
and internal 
controls; 
improve 
contract 
register 

Internal audit 
reporting 
 
Member Code 
of Conduct 
 
Review of 
contract 
register 

N/A Green P
age 17



Appendix A 

 
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Risk name Description 

R
is

k 
o

w
n

e
r 

Existing control 
measures in 
place 

Residual (net) risk score Risk control: 
Terminate; 
Tolerate; 
Transfer; Treat 

Action/s 

If Treat, 
target risk 
score and 
explanation 

Management 
assurance 

(RAG) 

Likelihood Impact Total 

1 to 4 
  

1 to 4 
  

1 to 16 
  

O
ve

ra
ll 

Reputation 

There is a 
reputational 
risk to the 
Council which 
could impact 
on the ability 
of the Council 
to operate 
effectively 

KN 

Internal and 
external 
communication, 
press releases, 
bulletins, 
website, social 
media; policy, 
protocol and 
training for 
speaking to the 
press 

2 
Possible 

3 
Major 
impact 

6 
Medium 

risk 

Tolerate; 
continue to 
communicate 
effectively and 
work with the 
press to 
portray the 
Council 
accurately 

Production of 
press releases, 
bulletins; use of 
social media; 
training; 
development of 
Visit Boston, 
Think Boston, 
My Boston 

N/A Green 

 

Guidance on scoring for information 
 
Risk appetite categories: 
 

 
 

P
age 18



Appendix A 

 
 

 
 

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

  
 

REPORT TO: AUDIT AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

DATE: 11 NOVEMBER 2019 

SUBJECT: MID-YEAR TREASURY REPORT 2019/20 

REPORT AUTHOR: CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Attached at Appendix 1 is the Mid-Year Report on the Council’s “Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy.” It covers 
the following areas; 
 

 An economic update for the first six months of the 2019/20 financial year 

 The outlook for the remainder of the financial year along with interest rate 
forecasts 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 

 The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators) 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2019/20 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2019/20 
 
This report refers to a key element of the Council’s Governance 
Framework and therefore represents an important contribution to the 
evidence trail in support of the Annual Governance Statement 2019/20. 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That the Audit and Governance Committee receive and review the contents of 
this report. 
 
 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
To effectively manage Treasury risk and protect Council capital. 
 

 

ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
There are no alternative recommendations. 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 3



1. Introduction 
 

1.1 This report provides the 2019/20 mid-year update on the Council’s 
“Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy”. 

 
1.2 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 

issued the revised Code of Practice for Treasury Management in 2017. 
 

1.3 The Code suggests that members should be informed of Treasury 
Management activities at least twice a year. This report therefore 
ensures this Council is embracing best practice in accordance with 
CIPFA’s revised Code of Practice. 

 
2.  Background 

 
2.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash 

raised during the year will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the 
treasury management operations ensure this cash flow is adequately 
planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising 
investment return. 

   
2.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the 

funding of the Council’s capital programme. The capital programme 
provides a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, essentially 
longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 
capital spending requirements. This management of longer term cash 
may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses, and on occasion, any existing debt may be 
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 
   

2.3 Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 
 

 “The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and 
cash flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; 
the effective control of the risks associated with those activities; and 
the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”  
  

2.4 The risks around investments have always been managed effectively 
by the Council. 
 

2.5 The continuing low levels of interest rates, along with continued 
uncertainty in the financial markets, means the returns from 
investments are currently below historical levels. 
 

2.6 During 2018/19 the Council completed its purchase of property fund 
units and borrowed £15.449m from the PWLB at an average rate of 
2.48% in accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy 
approved by Council in April 2018. 

Page 22



2.7 The purchase of property fund units has significantly increased 
investment returns to the Council. 
 

3 Financial Update – half year to 30 September 
 

3.1 At 30 September 2019, the Council held £16.760m in cash investments 
(£11.268m at 31 March) and £20.428m in property funds (£20.627m at 
31 March).  
 

3.2 The Council budgeted to receive £711,000 (£911,000 gross, with 
£200,000 of property fund management fees) in investment income in 
2019/20 comprising £619,000 from Property Funds and £92,000 from 
cash investments (Property Fund Income included in the original 
budget was based on its net position i.e. Gross Returns less 
Management Fees). Future years’ budgets and reports will show the 
gross position for income returns with management fees reported 
separately. 
 

3.3 As at 30 September 2019, total investment income for the year is 
estimated to be £1,084,000 comprising £976,000 from Property Funds 
and £108,000 from cash investments. Property Fund Management fees 
for 2019/20 are estimated at £209,000.  
 

3.4 In 2019/20, cumulatively to 30 September 2019, the Council achieved 
an average gross revenue return (before deduction of management 
charges) of 4.75% from the Property Fund purchases, and 3.74% net 
(after the deduction of those charges).  
 

3.5 Treasury (cash) Investments achieved an average rate of 0.76% 
compared to the benchmark average 3-month LIBID rate of 0.66%. 

 
3.6 Borrowing at 30 September 2019 is £16.449m of which £15.449m is 

from the PWLB. Total borrowing costs for 2019/20 are projected to be 
£494,000. 
 

4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Treasury Management continues to require close attention given the 

current financial climate. Officers will continue to be vigilant and report 
any significant issues to this Committee. 

 
 

Review Date: 
 
Regular reporting is undertaken in the quarterly Governance Reports, and 
Annual Treasury Management Reports are produced each year. Any 
significant treasury issues arising will be reported to the Audit and 
Governance Committee. 
 
 

Page 23



 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The entire report 
 

 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The General Power of Competence (GPOC) in the Localism Act 2011 
allows Councils a broad freedom in their operations.  
 
Councils have the general power to borrow under Section 1 of the Local 
Government Act 2003.  
 
The power to invest is set out in the Local Government Act 2003, Section 
12, which gives the Council the power to invest for any purpose relevant to 
its functions under any enactment, or for the purposes of the prudent 
management of its financial affairs.  
 
The power that allows councils to spend for capital purposes is included in 
the Local Government Act 2003.  
 

 

ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
Risk Management 
The Code of Practice sets out the framework for controlling the risks 
associated with treasury management decisions for borrowing and investing.  
Ultimately investment and borrowing decisions are made in accordance with 
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. The overriding priority is that 
the security of a deposit takes precedence over a return on investment. 
 

The Prudential and Treasury Indicators control the limits for investing and 
borrowing, to ensure that any borrowing is affordable and sustainable and 
long term borrowing is for capital purposes only. 
 
Impact on Performance 
There is a requirement to try and balance the risks and rewards from investing 
our available cash resources, as outlined within the Treasury Management 
Strategy 2019/20. 
 

 
CONSULTATION 
 
No consultation undertaken.   
 
 
 
 

Page 24



 

APPENDICES 
 
Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX 1 Mid Year Review Report 2019/20 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
Background papers used in the production of this report are listed below: - 
 

Document 
title 

Where the document can be viewed 
 

Treasury 
Management 
Strategy 
Statement for 
2019/20 

As part of the MTFS reported to Full Council 28 February 
2019. 
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6292/Append
ix%208%20-
%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20201920%2
0-%20202324.pdf 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body.   

 
 

Page 25

https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6292/Appendix%208%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20201920%20-%20202324.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6292/Appendix%208%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20201920%20-%20202324.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6292/Appendix%208%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20201920%20-%20202324.pdf
https://moderngov.boston.gov.uk/documents/s6292/Appendix%208%20-%20Treasury%20Management%20Strategy%20201920%20-%20202324.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

Appendix 1 
 

Boston Borough Council 
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and  

Annual Investment Strategy 
 

Mid-Year Review Report 2019/20 
 

1. Background 
 

1.1 Capital Strategy 
 
In December 2017, the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, (CIPFA), 
issued revised Prudential and Treasury Management Codes. From 2019/20, all local 
authorities have been required to prepare a Capital Strategy, providing the following:-  
 

 A high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury 
management activity contribute to the provision of services;  

 An overview of how the associated risk is managed; and 
 The implications for future financial sustainability. 

 

1.2 Treasury Management 
 
The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the year 
will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure this cash 
flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk counterparties, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering optimising investment return. 
 
The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the Council’s 
capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the Council, 
essentially the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its capital 
spending operations.  This management of longer-term cash may involve arranging long or 
short-term loans, or using longer-term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion, any existing 
debt previously be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.  
 
Accordingly, treasury management is defined as: 
 

“The management of the local authority’s borrowing, investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the 
risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks.” 

 

2. Introduction 
 
This report has been written in accordance with the requirements of the Chartered Institute 
of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 
(revised 2017). The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:  
 

1. Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement, which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities. 

2. Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner by which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives. 

Page 27



 
 

3. Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report, (stewardship 
report), covering activities during the previous year. 

4. Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury management policies and practices and for the execution and administration 
of treasury management decisions. 

5. Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy 
and policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Audit and Governance Committee. 

 
This mid-year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following: 
 

 An economic update for the first part of the 2019/20 financial year; 

 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy; 

 The Council’s capital expenditure, as set out in the Capital Strategy, and prudential 
indicators; 

 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2019/20; 

 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2019/20; 

 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2019/20; and 

 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2019/20. 

 

3.  Economics and Interest Rate 
 

3.1 Economic Update 
 
UK.  This first half year has been a time of upheaval on the political front as Theresa May 
resigned as Prime Minister to be replaced by Boris Johnson on a platform of the UK leaving 
the EU on or before 31 October, with or without a deal.  Given the prevailing circumstances 
and the likelihood of an imminent general election, any interest rate forecasts are subject to 
material change as the situation evolves.  If the UK does soon achieve a deal on Brexit 
agreed with the EU, including some additional clarification wording on the Irish border 
backstop, then it is possible that growth could recover relatively quickly. The MPC could then 
need to address the issue of whether to raise Bank Rate when there is very little slack left in 
the labour market; this could cause wage inflation to accelerate which would then feed 
through into general inflation.  On the other hand, if there was a no deal Brexit and there was 
a significant level of disruption to the economy, then growth could weaken even further than 
currently and the MPC would be likely to cut Bank Rate in order to support growth. However, 
with Bank Rate still only at 0.75%, it has relatively little room to make a big impact and the 
MPC would probably suggest that it would be up to the Chancellor to provide help to support 
growth by way of a fiscal boost by e.g. tax cuts, increases in government departments and 
services annual expenditure budgets and expenditure on infrastructure projects, to boost the 
economy.   
 
The first half of 2019/20 has seen UK economic growth fall as Brexit uncertainty took a toll. 
It was therefore no surprise that the Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) left Bank Rate 
unchanged at 0.75% throughout 2019, so far, and is expected to hold off on changes until 
there is some clarity on what is going to happen over Brexit. However, it is also worth noting 
that the new Prime Minister is making some significant promises on various spending 
commitments and a relaxation in the austerity programme. This will provide some support to 
the economy and, conversely, take some pressure off the MPC to cut Bank Rate to support 
growth. 
 

Page 28



 
 

As for inflation itself, CPI has been hovering around the Bank of England’s target of 2% 
during 2019, but fell to 1.7% in August. It is likely to remain close to 2% over the next two 
years and so it does not pose any immediate concern to the MPC at the current time. 
However, if there was a no deal Brexit, inflation could rise towards 4%, primarily because of 
imported inflation on the back of a weakening pound. 
 
In the political arena, if there is a general election soon, this could result in a potential 
loosening of monetary policy and therefore medium to longer dated gilt yields could rise on 
the expectation of a weak pound and concerns around inflation picking up although, 
conversely, a weak international backdrop could provide further support for low yielding 
government bonds and gilts. 
 
WORLD GROWTH.  The trade war between the US and China is a major concern to 
financial markets and is depressing worldwide growth, as any downturn in China will spill 

over into impacting countries supplying raw materials to China. Concerns are focused on 
the synchronised general weakening of growth in the major economies of the world 

compounded by fears that there could even be a recession looming up in the US, though this 
is probably overblown. These concerns have resulted in government bond yields in the 
developed world falling significantly during 2019. If there were a major worldwide downturn 
in growth, central banks in most of the major economies will have limited ammunition 
available, in terms of monetary policy measures, when rates are already very low in most 
countries, (apart from the US), and there are concerns about how much distortion of financial 
markets has already occurred with the current levels of quantitative easing purchases of 
debt by central banks. The latest PMI survey statistics of economic health for the US, UK, 
EU and China have all been sub 50 which gives a forward indication of a downturn in 
growth; this confirms investor sentiment that the outlook for growth during the rest of this 
financial year is weak. 

 
3.2 Interest Rate Forecasts 
 
The Council’s treasury advisor, Link Asset Services, has provided the following forecast: 
 

 
 
The above forecast, and other comments in this report, are based on an assumption that 
there is some sort of muddle through agreement on a reasonable form of Brexit. Given the 
current level of uncertainties, this is a huge assumption and so forecasts may need to be 
materially reassessed in the light of events over the next few weeks or months.  
 
Bond yields / PWLB rates.  There has been much speculation recently that we are 
currently in a bond market bubble.  However, given the context that there are heightened 
expectations that the US could be heading for a recession, and a general background of a 
downturn in world economic growth, together with inflation generally at low levels in most 
countries and expected to remain subdued, conditions are ripe for low bond yields.   

Link Asset Services Interest Rate View

Sep-19 Dec-19 Mar-20 Jun-20 Sep-20 Dec-20 Mar-21 Jun-21 Sep-21 Dec-21 Mar-22

Bank Rate View 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.25

3 Month LIBID 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.20

6 Month LIBID 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.90 1.00 1.10 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.40

12 Month LIBID 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.10 1.20 1.30 1.30 1.40 1.50 1.60

5yr PWLB Rate 1.20 1.30 1.50 1.60 1.70 1.70 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.10

10yr PWLB Rate 1.50 1.60 1.80 1.90 2.00 2.00 2.10 2.20 2.30 2.30 2.40

25yr PWLB Rate 2.10 2.30 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.70 2.70 2.80 2.90 3.00 3.00

50yr PWLB Rate 2.00 2.20 2.30 2.40 2.50 2.60 2.60 2.70 2.80 2.90 2.90

Page 29



 
 

 
What we have seen during the last half year is a near halving of longer term PWLB rates to 
completely unprecedented historic low levels. There is though, an expectation that financial 
markets have gone too far in their fears about the degree of the downturn in US and world 
growth.   
 
Another danger is that unconventional monetary policy post 2008, (ultra-low interest rates 
plus quantitative easing), may end up doing more harm than good through prolonged use. 
Low interest rates have encouraged a debt fuelled boom which now makes it harder for 
economies to raise interest rates. Negative interest rates could damage the profitability of 
commercial banks and so impair their ability to lend and / or push them into riskier lending. 
Banks could also end up holding large amounts of their government’s bonds and so create a 
potential doom loop. (A doom loop would occur where the credit rating of the debt of a nation 
was downgraded which would cause bond prices to fall, causing losses on debt portfolios 
held by banks and insurers, so reducing their capital and forcing them to sell bonds – which, 
in turn, would cause further falls in their prices etc.). In addition, the financial viability of 
pension funds could be damaged by low yields on holdings of bonds. 
 
The balance of risks to the UK 

 The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK is probably to the 
downside due to the weight of all the uncertainties over Brexit, as well as a softening 
global economic picture. 

 The balance of risks to increases in Bank Rate and shorter-term PWLB rates are 
broadly similarly to the downside.  

 
One risk that is both an upside and downside risk is that all central banks are now working in 
very different economic conditions than before the 2008 financial crash. There has been a 
major increase in consumer and other debt due to the exceptionally low levels of borrowing 
rates that have prevailed for eleven years since 2008. This means that the neutral rate of 
interest in an economy, (i.e. the rate that is neither expansionary nor deflationary), is difficult 
to determine definitively in this new environment, although central banks have made 
statements that they expect it to be much lower than before 2008. Central banks could, 
therefore, over or under-do increases in central interest rates. 
 

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates 
currently include:  
 

 Brexit – if it were to cause significant economic disruption and a major downturn in 

the rate of growth. 

 Bank of England takes action too quickly, or too far, over the next three years to 

raise Bank Rate and causes UK economic growth, and increases in inflation, to be 

weaker than we currently anticipate.  

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis. In 2018, Italy was a major 

concern due to having a populist coalition government which made a lot of anti-

austerity and anti-EU noise.  However, in September 2019 there was a major change 

in the coalition governing Italy which has brought to power a much more EU friendly 

government; this has eased the pressure on Italian bonds. Only time will tell whether 

this new unlikely alliance of two very different parties will endure.  

 Weak capitalisation of some European banks, particularly Italian banks. 

 German minority government.  In the German general election of September 2017, 

Angela Merkel’s CDU party was left in a vulnerable minority position dependent on 

the fractious support of the SPD party, as a result of the rise in popularity of the anti-

immigration AfD party. Then in October 2018, the results of the Bavarian and Hesse 

state elections radically undermined the SPD party and showed a sharp fall in 

Page 30



 
 

support for the CDU. As a result, the SPD had a major internal debate as to whether 

it could continue to support a coalition that is so damaging to its electoral popularity. 

After the result of the Hesse state election, Angela Merkel announced that she would 

not stand for re-election as CDU party leader at her party’s convention in December 

2018. However, this makes little practical difference as she has continued as 

Chancellor, though more recently concerns have arisen over her health.  

 Other minority EU governments. Austria, Sweden, Spain, Portugal, Netherlands 

and Belgium all have vulnerable minority governments dependent on coalitions which 

could prove fragile.  

 Italy, Austria, the Czech Republic and Hungary now form a strongly anti-

immigration bloc within the EU.  There has also been rising anti-immigration 

sentiment in Germany and France. 

 There are concerns around the level of US corporate debt, which has swollen 
massively during the period of low borrowing rates in order to finance mergers and 
acquisitions. This has resulted in the debt of many large corporations being 
downgraded to a BBB credit rating, close to junk status. Indeed, 48% of total 
investment grade corporate debt is rated at BBB. If such corporations fail to generate 
profits and cash flow to reduce their debt levels as expected, this could tip their debt 
into junk ratings which will increase their cost of financing and further negatively 
impact profits and cash flow. 

 Geopolitical risks, for example in North Korea, but also in Europe and the Middle 

East, which could lead to increasing safe haven flows.  

 

Upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates 
 

 Brexit – If agreement was reached, all round that removed all threats of economic 

and political disruption between the EU and the UK.  

 The Bank of England is too slow in its pace and strength of increases in Bank Rate 

and, therefore, allows inflationary pressures to build up too strongly within the UK 

economy, which then necessitates a later rapid series of increases in Bank Rate 

faster than we currently expect.  

 UK inflation, whether domestically generated or imported, returning to sustained 

significantly higher levels causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt 

yields.   

 

4. Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy Update 
 
The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2019/20 was approved by 
Council on 28 February 2019, as part of the Capital Strategy. 
 
There are no in-year policy changes to the TMSS; the details in this report update the 
position in light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.   

 

5. The Council’s Capital Position (Prudential Indicators) 
 
This part of the report is structured to update: 

 The Council’s capital expenditure plans; 

 How these plans are being financed; 

 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 
indicators  and the underlying need to borrow; and 

 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity. 

Page 31



 
 

 
5.1 Prudential Indicators for Capital Expenditure 
 
This table shows the original capital expenditure estimate, actual expenditure to 30 
September and the revised estimate, representing the latest approved programme (at Q2, 
being presented to Cabinet in November 2019). 

 
Capital Expenditure by Head 
of Service 

2019/20 
Original 
Estimate 

£’000 

Position at 
30/09/19 

 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

Regulatory Services             4,125                148            4,734 

Place                 774                196               973 

Corporate Services                  45                  39                 72 

Operations             1,422                  16               205 

Deputy Chief Executive -                  14                 27 

Total Capital Expenditure 6,366 413 6,011 

 

5.2 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme 
 
The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure plans 
(above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported elements of the capital 
programme, and the expected financing arrangements of this capital expenditure.  The 
borrowing element of the table (nil for 2019/20) increases the underlying indebtedness of the 
Council by way of the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), although this will be reduced in 
part by revenue charges for the repayment of debt (the Minimum Revenue Provision).   
 

Capital Expenditure and 
Financing 

2019/20 
Original 
Estimate 

£’000 

Position at 
30/09/19 

 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

Total Capital Expenditure 6,366 413 6,011 

    

Financed by:    

Capital Grants and 
Contributions 

4,367 265 5,286 

Revenue Resources 1,999 148 725 

Total Financing 6,366 413 6,011 

    

Borrowing Need - - - 

 

5.3 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement 
(CFR), External Debt and the Operational Boundary 
 
The table below shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur borrowing for 
a capital purpose.  It also shows the expected debt position over the period, which is termed 
the Operational Boundary. 
 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement 
 
We are on target to achieve the original forecast Capital Financing Requirement.  
 
 
 
 

Page 32



 
 

 
 

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for external debt 
 

 2019/20 
Original 
Estimate 

£’000 

Position at 
30/09/19 

 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

Prudential Indicator – Capital Financing Requirement  

CFR – Non Housing 20,459 20,419 20,419 

    

Net movement  in CFR - (30) (30) 

    

Prudential Indicator – the Operational Boundary for external debt 

Borrowing  22,000 22,000 22,000 

Other long term liabilities - - - 

Total Debt at 31 March  22,000 22,000 22,000 

 

5.4 Limits to Borrowing Activity 
 
The first key control over treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over the 
medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital purpose.  
Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of CFR in the 
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2019/20 and next two financial 
years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  The Council 
has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered to if this 
proves prudent.   
 

 2019/20 
Original 
Estimate 

£’000 

Position at 
30/09/19 

 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

Gross Borrowing 16,449 16,449 16,449 

Total Debt 16,449 16,449 16,449 

    

CFR (year-end position)  20,459 20,419 20,419 

 
The Chief Finance Officer reports that no difficulties are envisaged for the current or future 
years in complying with this prudential indicator.   
 
A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised 
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set 
and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be 
afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 
maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003.  
 

 2019/20 
Original 
Estimate 

£’000 

Position at 
30/09/19 

 
£’000 

2019/20 
Revised 
Estimate 

£’000 

Borrowing 25,000 25,000 25,000 

Other long term liabilities - - - 

Total  25,000 25,000 25,000 

 

Page 33



 
 

 
6. Investment Portfolio 
 
In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s 
risk appetite.  As shown by forecasts in section 3.2, it is a very difficult investment market in 
terms of earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as rates are 
very low and in line with the current 0.75% Bank Rate.  The continuing potential for a re-
emergence of a Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk 
and short-term strategy.  Given this risk environment and the fact that increases in Bank 
Rate are likely to be gradual and unlikely to return to the levels seen in previous decades, 
investment returns are likely to remain low.  
 
The Council budgeted to receive £711,000 in investment income in 2019/20 comprising 
£619,000 from Property Funds (£911,000 gross, with £200,000 of management fees), and 
£92,000 from cash investments (Property Fund Income included in the original budget was 
based on its net position i.e. Gross Returns less Management Fees). Future years’ budgets 
and reports will show the gross position for income returns with management fees reported 
separately. 
 
At 30 September 2019, total investment income for the year is estimated to be £1,084,000 
comprising £976,000 from Property Funds and £108,000 from cash investments. Property 
Fund Management fees for 2019/20 are estimated at £209,000.  
 
In 2019/20, cumulatively to 30 September 2019, the Council achieved an average gross 
revenue return (before deduction of management charges) of 4.75% from the Property Fund 
purchases (3.74% after fees).  
 
Treasury (cash) Investments achieved an average rate of 0.76% compared to the 
benchmark average 3-month LIBID rate of 0.66%. 
 
The table below details the cash investments held by the Council at 30 September 2019. 
Investments are made in line with both Link’s creditworthiness guidance and the duration 
limits applied to each colour banding.   
 

Financial 
Institution 

Amount  
£’000 

Duration Rate 
Most recent Link Asset 
Services Colour Rating 

HSBC 6,510 Call 0.43% Orange (12 months) 

CCLA 3,000 Call 0.72% Yellow 5 Years 

Santander 1,500 95 day notice 0.85% Red – 6 months 

Barclays Bank 3,000 95 day notice 0.95% Red – 6 months 

Lloyds Bank 750 1 year 1.25% Orange (12 months) 

750 1 year 1.10% 

250 1 year 1.25% 

Bank of 
Scotland 

1,000 1 year 1.10% Orange (12 months) 

Page 34



 
 

Total 16,760    

The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy states investments are limited with any one 
institution to no more than £3m invested per institution, and £5m per counterparty ‘group’. 
On 23 working days residual balances in excess of the £5m limit were deposited in the 
Council’s current bank account (HSBC) for cash flow reasons (in accordance with para 7.3 
of the Treasury Management Strategy). 
 
The average level of funds available for investment from 1 April to 30 September 2019 was 
£14.000m. Of this, an average of £6.444m was available on a temporary basis, the level 
dependent on the timing of precept and business rate pool payments, receipt of grants and 
capital programme spend.  
 

Capital Strategy and Property Fund Valuation 
 
Detailed below are the property fund investments held by the Council, the valuation date for 
all funds being 30 September 2019. 
 

Financial Institution Purchase 
Cost 

 
 
 

£’000 

Net Asset 
Value at 
31 March  

2019 
 

£’000 

Net Asset 
Value at 
30 Sept 

2019 
 

£’000 

In-year 
Gain 

/(Loss) 
to 30 Sept 

2019 
£’000 

Black Rock UK Property Fund   4,500   4,581   4,536 (45) 

Schroder UK Real Estate Fund   4,250   4,344   4,336 (8) 

Threadneedle Property Unit Trust   4,239   4,102   4,049 (53) 

M&G UK Property Fund   4,000   3,836   3,727 (109) 

AEW   4,000   3,764   3,780 16 

Total 20,989 20,627 20,428 (199) 

 
The difference between purchase price (i.e. the amount invested) and  fair value reflects 
premiums paid or discount received against the Funds’ ‘Net Asset Value’ at the settlement 
date together with the movement in fund valuations since acquisition. Fair values have 
decreased very slightly during quarter 2, overall by 0.96% since 31 March 2019, mainly as a 
result of the ongoing economic uncertainties surrounding the Brexit process. 
 
Notification was received from M&G of a deferral of repayments requested by investors (a 
common tool used to manage liquidity in institutional property funds). It is invoked to protect 
investors as a whole from the impact of forced sales, in situations where redemption orders 
received exceed the level of available liquidity. Deferral is not a ‘suspension’ as pricing 
continues as normal, distributions continue to be paid, subscriptions are permitted and 
secondary trading is permitted. It is expected that these repayments will be finalised by the 
end of 2019. The position will continue to be monitored. 
 

7. Borrowing 
 
The Council’s projected capital financing requirement (CFR) at 31 March 2020 is £20.419m.  
The CFR denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  As the CFR 
is positive, the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external borrowing) or 
from internal balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance of external 
and internal borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.   
 
At the start of the 2019/20 financial year the Council’s total long-term external borrowing was 
£16.449m, and it has utilised £3.970m of cash reserves in lieu of borrowing due to the 

Page 35



 
 

current low rate of return on cash investments. Borrowing costs for 2019/20 are projected to 
be £494,000. 
No additional borrowing was undertaken during the half year ended 30 September 2019, 
and officers continue to monitor opportunities to replace the internally invested sums with 
long-term borrowing. 
 
The graph and table below show the movement in PWLB certainty rates for the first six 
months of the year to date.   
 

 
 

 
 

8. Debt Rescheduling 
 
The Council has £16.449m of long-term external borrowing. No debt rescheduling has been 
undertaken to date in the current financial year.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



 
 

 
 

9. Other 
 

9.1 Changes in Risk Appetite 
 
The 2018 CIPFA Codes and guidance notes have placed enhanced importance on risk 
management.  Where an authority changes its risk appetite e.g. for moving surplus cash into 
or out of certain types of investment funds or other types of investment instruments, this 
change in risk appetite and policy should be brought to members’ attention in treasury 
management update reports. 

 
There has been no change in risk appetite since the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement for 2019/20 was approved on 28 February 2019. 
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Internal Audit
Progress Report

For all your assurance needs

Boston Borough Council

October 2019

Page 39

Agenda Item 4



Contents
Page 2Key Messages

Introduction

Summary

Assurances

Page 3Internal Audit work completed

Overview of Assurances

Audit Reports at Draft

Work in Progress

Page 8Appendices

Page 7

Page 6

This report has been prepared solely for the use of Members and Management of Boston Borough Council. Details may be made 

available to specified external organisations, including external auditors, but otherwise the report should not be used or referred to in 

whole or in part without prior consent.  No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has not been prepared, and is 

not intended for any other purpose.

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to our attention during the course of our work – there may be 

weaknesses in governance, risk management and the system of internal control that we are not aware of because they did not form 

part of our work programme, were excluded from the scope of individual audit engagements or were not bought to our attention.

The opinion is based solely the work undertaken as part of the agreed internal audit plan.

John Scott - Audit Manager  (Head of Internal Audit)

john.scott@lincoln.gov.uk

Paul Berry – Principal Auditor

paul.berry@lincoln.gov.uk

Page 8Appendices

1 Limited Assurance Reports

2 Assurance Definitions

3 Audit Recommendations

4 2019/20 Audit Plan to Date

1

Page 40



Introduction
The purpose of this report is to:

•• Provide details of the audit work during the Provide details of the audit work during the period September to Octoberperiod September to October

•• Advise on progress with the Advise on progress with the 2019/20 plan2019/20 plan

•• Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Raise any other matters that may be relevant to the Audit Committee roleCommittee role

2

Key Messages

Two assurance reviews and an initial piece of Combined 

Assurance work on ICT have been completed.

At the end of September 43% of the Plan was complete 

(target is 44%).

Assurances

The following audit work has been completed and a final 

report issued;

0
HIGH 

ASSURANCE

2

2
SUBSTANTIAL 

ASSURANCE

report issued;

• Health & Safety - Substantial

• Medium Term Financial Strategy – Substantial

Note: The assurance expressed is at the time of issue of 

the report but before the full implementation of the agreed 

management action plan.  The definitions for each level 

are shown in Appendix 1. 

0
LIMITED 

ASSURANCE

0
LOW 

ASSURANCE

Page 41



Substantial Assurance

The Council has appropriate health and safety processes in place to 

ensure compliance with its responsibilities under H&S legislation;

• There is an up to date H&S Policy supported by an extensive H&S 

Manual, which is promoted and accessible. The Policy sets out H&S 

roles and responsibilities for all levels of management and staff and our 

work confirmed that they are operating. It is hoped that an employee 

group can be reinstated to act as a formal forum for discussing H&S 

issues.

• The Council has recently appointed a new Health & Safety Advisor, to 

replace the previous postholder who retired, and there was an overlap of 

more than six months to ensure a smooth transition and no interruption 

of service provision.

• There is an annual H&S Action Plan and Annual Report

• H&S inspections / risk assessments are being undertaken and 

management are made aware of any issues found. However there is no 

formal monitoring process to ensure that any issues found are 

addressed. A process will be introduced (High priority recommendation)

• A comparison of the asset register to the risk assessment register 

Health &

Safety 

identified 5 sites without a risk assessment. It has been agreed that risk 

assessments will be undertaken as soon as possible (High priority 

recommendation

• There is an established incident reporting process, which includes 

investigation and lessons learned

• Staff receive general and, where required, specific H&S training

Some further areas requiring improvement have been identified for which 

Medium priority recommendations have been made;

• Improving governance arrangements by establishing a regular H&S item 

on SMT agendas and feeding any significant issues up to CMT

• Providing Members with general H&S training

• Incorporating the H&S framework at GMLC into the corporate process, 

as it currently operates somewhat in isolation

4

Page 42



Substantial Assurance

Medium 

Term 

Financial 

The Council has appropriate processes in place to prepare and monitor 

its Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS);

• The MTFS is widely consulted on before being approved by Cabinet 

and Council

• The Council’s financial position is monitored regularly at service level 

& quarterly by CMT, Cabinet and the Capital Working Group

• Current and future budget assumptions and income levels are 

reasonable and well informed

• Savings requirements have been identified. The current 

Transformation Programme is coming to an end and a new 

Programme for 2020/21 to 2023/24 was approved by Council on 30 

September 2019

• The Council maintains a level of General Fund reserves (£2m) that the 

S151 Officer considers to be appropriate - this equates to just over 

20% of the revenue budget requirement. It is held in short term 

investments which can easily be obtained. Whilst there isn’t a formal 

Reserves Policy it is considered that the statements provided in the 

MTFS and the Annual Financial Report cover this

4

Financial 

Strategy 

(MTFS)

MTFS and the Annual Financial Report cover this

• The Council maintains specific reserves for a variety of uses and 

reports on them in the MTFS and the Annual Financial Report

• The Council has a Capital Strategy, as required by the CIPFA 

Prudential Code 2017 

• There are appropriate links between the MTFS, the Capital & Treasury 

Strategy, the Corporate Plan and the Transformation Programme

• Risks to the MTFS have been identified and are being managed

Some areas for improvement have been identified and Medium priority 

recommendations have been made;

• A stock condition survey hasn’t been done for a number of years 

which means that the Capital & Treasury Strategy is likely to contain 

out of date estimates on asset management costs. It is recommended 

that this is done in the next couple of years.

• CIPFA’s Prudential Code 2017 states that a Capital Strategy should 

cover the long term (20 – 30 years). Boston’s Strategy is focussed on 

the short term and it is recommended that future versions take a 

longer term view.

Page 43



ICT 

Assurance 

Map

We have commenced some detailed assurance mapping work on ICT 

based largely on the Information Security Standard ISO27001/2.

The IT & Transformation Manager has recently taken on the IT Manager 

role supported by a Principal IT Officer.

The map is still work in progress and will be finalised in quarter 4.

At this stage we have reported back to the new IT & Transformation 

Manager who is already progressing a number of projects with the team, 

particularly around updating IT Security policies, standards and procedures 

and our current work is informing this wider IT action plan, which will be 

developed by the end of December.

The Action Plan includes, amongst other things;

• Ensuring that the service achieves its PSN (public service network) 

accreditation including an updated PEN (penetration) test

5

accreditation including an updated PEN (penetration) test

• Reviewing project and programme management arrangements including 

reporting

• Introducing a formal IT risk register

Page 44



Audits reports at draft stage

There are two audits at draft report stage –

Debtors and Creditors.

Work in Progress

There are two audit’s in progress:

2 Draft 

Reports

2 Work in 

Progress

5

• Scrutiny

• Values & Behaviours

Two audits are being prepared;

• Bank Key Controls

• Treasury Management Key Controls

Page 45



Benchmarking
Internal Audit's performance is measured against a range of indicators.  

The statistics below show our performance on key indicators year to 

date. 

Performance on Key Indicators

Rated our 

service Good 

High 

achievement 

of Audit KPI’s 

100% 

service Good 

to Excellent

6

43%

100%

100%

100%

44%

100%

100% 100%

Plan Span Draft 
Issue

Final 
Issue

2019/20 Target to date

to date

Page 46



Other matters of interest

Working with other Councils – East Lindsey District Council

The Assurance Lincolnshire Partnership consists of City of Lincoln, Lincolnshire County 

Council, East Lindsey District Council and Nottinghamshire County Council. 

East Lindsey asked if their audit team (3 people) could transfer to Lincolnshire County 

Council which was approved – the transfer is planned for 1st December 2019.

The transfer of the team will increase LCC’s capacity and capability, supporting long term 

sustainability and succession planning. The team members are highly skilled and experienced 

auditors in a hard to recruit market. 

7

Page 47



There are none.

Appendix 1 Audits with Limited or Low Assurance

8

Page 48



Appendix 2 Assurance Definitions

High
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level 

of confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of 

risks, and the operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  

Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are 

operating effectively.

Substantial
Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 

substantial level of confidence (assurance) on service delivery 

arrangements, management of risks, and operation of controls and / 

or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls 

to manage risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as 

adequate, appropriate and operating sufficiently so that the risk of the 

activity not achieving its objectives is medium to low.  

Limited 

9

Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a 

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be 

operating or are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are 

unlikely to give a reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the 

risks are being managed effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will 

achieve its objectives.

Low

Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant 

concerns on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 

and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key 

risks or the controls have been evaluated as not adequate, 

appropriate or are not being effectively operated. Therefore the risk 

of the activity not achieving its objectives is high.

Page 49



Appendix 3 Audit Recommendations

Audit Recommendation Status at mid October

Activity Issue 

Date

Assurance Total 

recs

Recs 

Imp

Priority of Overdue 

Recommendations

Recs 

not 

due

High Medium Low

Environmental

Enforcement

Oct 18 High 2 2 0 0 0 0

The outstanding recommendation has been completed.

Housing Benefit 

key controls

Nov 18 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0 0

In progress - target date further extended to Dec 19 (original date was Mar 19). 

Further in-depth work is required.

Council Tax key 

controls

Nov 18 High 2 1 0 1 0 0

In progress - target date further extended to Dec 19 (original date was Mar 19). 

Further in-depth work is required.

Economic 

Development

Mar 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0 0

Target date extended to March 2020 (original date was Sept 19) – this action is 

linked to the new Corporate Plan which has had its deadline extended following 

the recent Peer Review.

10

Business 

Continuity & 

Emergency 

Planning

Mar 19 Substantial 9 2 1 4 0 2

2 recs implemented

5 recs extended to Sept 19 (original target date was Jun 19).

This position is at July 2019 – a further update is awaited.

IT Infrastructure 

Follow Up

Apr 19 Substantial 3 2 0 1 0 0

In progress - rec is on track for completion by end Dec 19

Complaints May 19 Substantial 10 6 0 0 0 4

2 recs implemented within target

Website / 

Digitalisation

May 19 Substantial 5 3 2 0 0 0

1 rec implemented.

2 (High) recs extended to Mar 20 (original date was Sept 19) due to a new project

to review the websites.

Risk May 19 Substantial 1 1

Rec has been implemented within target

Homelessness July 19 Substantial 1 1

Rec has been implemented within target

Page 50



Appendix 4 2019/20 Audit Plan to date

Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 

date

Start 

Actual 

date

End 

Actual 

date

Status/ 

Rating

Annual Report Production of 2018/19 Annual 

Report

Q1 April 

2019

May 

2019

N/A

Homelessness Implementation of the 

Homelessness Reduction Act 

2017

Q1 May 

2019

July

2019

Substantial

Markets Income processing Q1 May 

2019

July 

2019

High

Health & Safety Compliance with key H&S 

legislation

Q1-2 June

2019

Oct 

19

Substantial

Medium Term 

Financial 

Process, risk management 

and assumptions

Q1-2 July 

2019

Oct 

19

Substantial

11

Strategy

ICT Production of a detailed ICT 

assurance map

Q1-2 April

2019

Oct 

19

Completed

Debtors Key Controls Q2 Sept 

19

Draft 

report

Creditors Key Controls Q2 Sept 

19

Draft 

report

Bank Key Controls Q3 To start 

Nov

Scrutiny Operation of the Council’s 

Scrutiny committees

Q2 Oct 19 In 

progress

Private Sector 

Housing

Licensing of Houses in 

Multiple Occupation

Q3

Treasury 

Management

Key Controls Q3 To start 

Nov

Values &

Behaviours

Assessment of the Council’s 

ethical framework

Q3 Oct 19 In 

progress

ICT To be confirmed TBC

Page 51



Audit Scope of Work Start 

Planned 

date

Start 

Actual 

date

End 

Actual 

date

Status/ 

Rating

Combined 

Assurance

Production of the 2019/20 

Assurance Map and report

Q3-4

IA Strategy & 

new Audit Plan

Production of 2020/21 Audit 

Plan

Q3-4

Environmental 

Health

Food Safety inspections Q4

Boston Town 

Area Committee

Governance and general 

operation

Q4

Governance, 

Risk & Fraud

High level work to inform the 

annual audit opinion

Q4

12

Page 52



 

AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019-20 
 

MEETING 
 

ITEMS 

22 MAY  
2019  

 Annual External Audit Fee – Mazars 

 External Audit Progress Report including Technical Update – Mazars 
Annual Fraud Performance Report 2018/19 – Credit Control Manager 

 Pre-Audit Financial Report 2018/19 – Chief Finance Officer   

 Annual Treasury Management Report 2018/19 – Chief Finance Officer  

 Internal Audit Annual Report 2018/19 – Internal Auditor  

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

22 JULY  
2019 

 Audit Completion Report, year ending 31 March 2019 – Mazars 

 Quarter 4 2018/19 Risk Report – Transformation & Governance Manager   

 Financial Report 2018/19 – Chief Finance Officer   

 Treasury Management and Capital Strategy Update – Quarter 1 2019/20 – 
Chief Finance Officer 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 
 

16 SEPT  
2019 

 Annual Audit Letter- Year Ending 31st March 2019- Mazars 

 Quarter 1 Risk Report  – Transformation & Governance Manager 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor  
 

11 NOV  
2019 

 Fund Manager Presentation – Schroders 

 Quarter 2 Risk Report – Transformation & Governance Manager 

 Treasury Management – 2019/20 Mid-Year Update – Chief Finance 
Officer   

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 
 

27 JAN  
2020 

 External Audit Plan 2019/20 – Mazars 

 Certification of Grants and Returns – Annual Report 2018/19 – Mazars 

 Draft Budget Setting Report and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2020/21-2024/25 – Chief Finance Officer  

 Treasury Management Update – Quarter 3 2019/20 – Chief Finance 
Officer  

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

 Draft Internal Audit Plan 2020/21 – Internal Auditor 
 

23 MAR  
2020 

 Fund Manager Presentation – Blackrock  

 External Audit Progress Report including Technical Update – Mazars 

 Quarter 3 Risk Report 2019/20 – Transformation & Governance  
Manager  

 Annual Governance Statement 2019/20 – Chief Finance Officer 

 Accounting Policies – Chief Finance Officer  

 Combined Assurance – Status Report – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Progress Report 2019/20 – Internal Auditor 

 Internal Audit Plan  2020/21 – Internal Auditor 
 

 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	A MINUTES
	2 QUARTER 2 RISK REPORT
	Quarter 2 Risk Report- Appendix A

	3 MID-YEAR TREASURY REPORT 2019/20
	Mid-Year Treasury Report 2019/20 - Appendix 1

	4 INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT 2019/20
	5 WORK PROGRAMME

